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1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF 

3. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

4. CLOSED SESSION 

THAT the Board of Health convene in closed session for the purpose of a discussion of 
personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board 
employees, as it related to Section 239(2)(b) of the Municipal Act. 

5. MOTIONS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION 

6. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS BOARD MEETING 

6.1  Meeting Minutes of Wednesday, March 2, 2022 Schedule 6.1 
 

7. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

8. DEPUTATIONS - None 

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
9.1 Finance Committee - Bill 
 9.1.1 First Quarter Report and Year-to-Date Results Schedule 9.1.1 
 9.1.2 Draft Audited Financial Statements - 2021 Schedule 9.1.2 
 9.1.3 Audit Findings Report Schedule 9.1.3 
 9.1.4 Updated Financial Policies Schedule 9.1.4 
 9.1.5 2023 Municipal Levy - Impact without Mitigation Funding Schedule 9.1.5 
9.2 Governance Committee - Jan 
 9.2.1 Updated Board Governance Package (separate) Schedule 9.2.1 
 

10. REPORT OF THE MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH Schedule 10.0 

11. STAFF REPORTS 
11.1 Immunization Update - Bill Sherlock (on behalf of Alisha Hanes) Schedule 11.1 
11.2 Healthy Schools Program Update - Bill Sherlock/Sheryl Farrar Schedule 11.2 
 

12. CORRESPONDENCE AND COMMUNICATIONS - None 
 

13. NEW BUSINESS 
 

14. INFORMATION ITEMS (Available for viewing online at hpePublicHealth.ca) Schedule 14.0 

15. DATE OF NEXT MEETING – Wednesday, June 1, 2022 at 9:30 a.m. 
 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING AGENDA 

Wednesday, May 4, 2022 

9:30 to 11:30 a.m. 

In-Person Meeting 

 

 

https://hpepublichealth.ca/board-of-health/


BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, March 2, 2022 

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) 
Via Virtual – ZOOM 

Present: Ms. Jo-Anne Albert, Mayor, Municipality of Tweed, County of Hastings, Chair 
Dr. Jeffrey Allin, Provincial Appointee 
Mr. Stewart Bailey, Councillor, County of Prince Edward 
Dr. Craig Ervine, Provincial Appointee 
Mr. Michael Kotsovos, Councillor, City of Quinte West 
Mr. Bill Sandison, Councillor, City of Belleville 

Absent: Andreas Bolik, Councillor, County of Prince Edward 
Mr. Terry Cassidy, Councillor, City of Quinte West  
Mr. Sean Kelly, Councillor, City of Belleville 
Ms. Jan O’Neill, Mayor, Municipality of Marmora and Lake, County of Hastings, 
   Vice-Chair 

Also Present: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Acting Medical Officer of Health 
Ms. Shelly Brown, Director of Community Programs 
Ms. Valerie Dunham, Director of Corporate Services/Associate CEO 
Ms. Catherine Lovell, Executive Assistant 

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Albert called the meeting to order at 9:34 a.m.

2. ROLL CALL

Board Secretary completed a roll call.

Chair Albert congratulated Drs. Ervine and Allin on their reappointment to the Board.

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF

There was no disclosure of pecuniary interest.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

THAT the agenda for the Board of Health (Board) meeting on Wednesday, March 2, 2022 be
approved as circulated.

MOTION:
Moved by: Craig 
Seconded by: Stewart 
CARRIED 
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Approved at ___________________ Board Meeting Page 2 of 5 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS BOARD MEETING

5.1  Meeting minutes of Tuesday, February 1, 2022

THAT the minutes of the regular meeting of the Board held on Tuesday, February 1, 2022 be
approved as circulated.

MOTION:
Moved by: Michael 
Seconded by: Bill 
CARRIED 

6. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES - None

7. DEPUTATIONS – None

8. COMMITTEE REPORTS

8.1 Finance Committee – Bill

Councillor Sandison recognized Councillor Cassidy for his work as Chair of the Finance
Committee over the past few years and thanked the committee for having confidence in him as
the new Chair.

8.1.1 2021 Fourth Quarter Summary

THAT the Board of Health approve receipt of the Summary of Revenues and Expenses for the
period from January 1 to December 31, 2021 as circulated.

MOTION
Moved by: Stewart 
Seconded by: Jeffrey 
CARRIED 

Bill noted that 2021 was the first full year of COVID-19, considering this the overall financial 
position of the Health Unit was extraordinary.  We received $1.5M assistance from the province. 
There were no questions regarding this report. 

8.1.2 Annual Service Plan Budget 

THAT the Board of Health approve the Annual Service Plan for submission to the Ministry of 
Health as presented. 

MOTION 
Moved by: Bill 
Seconded by: Stewart 
CARRIED 
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Bill noted the finance team has gone through in detail and put together a financial submission to 
the province.  $1.8M has been put forth to the Ministry.  One note to highlight is that we are 
requesting an extra $250,000 for the oral health program as this program is severely 
underfunded.  There were no questions. 

8.1.3 Population Figures and Levy Calculations 

THAT the Board of Health develop and implement a policy outlining that updated population 
figures released in the Stats Canada Population Census will become effective the January 
following the release of the population figures. 

MOTION 
Moved by:  Michael 
Seconded by: Craig 
CARRIED 

Bill mentioned that in November the Board approved the budget and the municipalities were 
informed of their levies.  Due to a change in calculating the municipal levies, using the Statistics 
Canada Population Census going forward, it was agreed that those figures would take effect next 
year and then for each census year, the year after the new figures are published.  There were no 
questions. 

At 9:45 am the Host got put out of the meeting and got back into the meeting at 9:48 am. 

9. REPORT OF THE MEDICAL OFFICER OF HEALTH

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health be received as presented.

MOTION
Moved by: Stewart 
Seconded by: Craig 
CARRIED 

⬧ Dr. Toumishey reviewed the latest COVID-19 statistics in our area: 237 high risk
cases; 25 hospitalizations, 2 in ICU and 12 active outbreaks in high-risk settings.  Of
the age group 12 and older 87% are fully vaccinated and 82% of residents 5 years
and over are fully vaccinated.

⬧ With the stabilization in key public health system indicators more protective
measures have been lifted effective March 1.

10. STAFF REPORTS

10.1 2021 AODA Report - Shelly Brown 
10.2 2021 Health and Safety Report - Shirley Davis 
10.3 2021 Privacy Report - Nancy McGeachy 
10.4 2021 Enforcement Report - Roberto Almeida 
10.5 Radon Report - Andrew Landy 
10.6 Health Promotion Prioritization Exercise - Veronica Montgomery 
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THAT the Health and Safety and Violence in the Workplace corporate statements be approved by 
the Board as circulated. 

MOTION 
Moved by:  Stewart 
Seconded by: Bill 
CARRIED 

THAT all staff reports be received by the Board as circulated and presented. 

MOTION 
Moved by:  Michael 
Seconded by: Bill 
CARRIED 

11. CORRESPONDENCE AND COMMUNICATIONS

THAT the correspondence be approved as circulated.

MOTION:
Moved by: Bill 
Seconded by: Craig 
CARRIED 

12. NEW BUSINESS

It was brought forward by a member that it was too early to lift the masking mandate and put forth
a motion to advocate to the provincial government to hold off lifting the masking protective
measures.  After much discussion, the motion was withdrawn and it was agreed we would follow
the recommendations of the Chief Medical Officer of Health.

13. INFORMATION ITEMS

THAT the Board of Health receive the information items as circulated.

MOTION
Moved by: Jeff 
Seconded by: Bill 
CARRIED  

Chair Albert drew the Board’s attention to the information items listed within the agenda and 
found on the Public Health website. 

14. DATE OF NEXT MEETING – Wednesday, May 4, 2022
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15. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION:
Moved by: Stewart 
Seconded by: Bill 
CARRIED 

THAT this meeting of the Board be adjourned at 10:52 a.m. 

______________________________ 
Jo-Anne Albert, Board Chair 
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Board of Health Briefing Note 

To: Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health 

Prepared by: Valerie Dunham, Director of Corporate Services/Associate CEO 

Reviewed by: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Acting Medical Officer of Health and CEO 

Date: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 

Subject: First Quarter Report 

Nature of Board 
Engagement  

 For Information 

 Strategic Discussion 

 Board approval and motion required 

 Compliance with Accountability Framework 

 Compliance with Program Standards 

Action Required: Review and discussion of Expense Summary report for the period 
January – March, 2022. 

Background: Expense Summary, January 1 to March 31, 2022 

The summary of revenues and expenses for the first quarter of the 
year, January to March 2022 is attached.  Highlights include: 

⬧ Mandatory programs include all expenses related to mandatory
programs and COVID-19 related costs.  COVID-19 vaccine
expenses and case and contact management will be reallocated
when confirmation of one-time funding is received.

⬧ Ministry of Health one-time grants include the School-Focused
Nursing program and Medical Officer of Health (MOH)
Compensation Grant.

⬧ Seniors Dental program expenses continue to be in excess of
the base budget.  Based on first quarter results, services will
need to be discontinued in the fall if additional funds are not
secured.

⬧ Overall deficit balance of $54,000 will be adjusted as anticipated
one-time funding is confirmed.

⬧ Accountability agreement for 2022 should be received by
April 30, 2022

Recommendation: No recommendation required - sharing for information purposes only. 
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Board of Health Briefing Note 

To: Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health 

Prepared by: Valerie Dunham, Director of Corporate Services/Associate CEO 

Reviewed by: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Acting Medical Officer of Health and CEO 

Date: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 

Subject: Audited Financial Statements and Audit Findings Report 

Nature of Board 
Engagement 

 For Information 

 Strategic Discussion 

 Board approval and motion required 

 Compliance with Accountability Framework 

 Compliance with Program Standards 

Action Required: 1. Review and discussion of audited financial statements with motion
for approval by Board of Health.

2. Review and discussion of Audit Findings Report with motion to
receive.

Background: Audited Financial Statements 

During 2021, the City of Belleville conducted a Request for Proposal 
process to select an audit team for the next five (5) years. The contract 
was awarded to KPMG LLP, based in Kingston and a member firm of 
the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated 
with KPMG International.  This decision led to a transition from our 
former auditor Welch LLP. 

With a new audit team in place, the approach has been substantially 
different than in previous years and, for both parties, required a 
learning curve as the transition occurred over the past few months. 
Katie Mahon, a Senior Manager with KPMG, attended the Finance 
Committee meeting held on April 20, 2022 to present highlights of the 
attached statements and audit process.  There were no significant 
concerns found during the audit and Katie Mahon expressed her 
thanks to the team for the cooperation throughout the audit process. 
Katie Mahon or Lori Huber, KPMG Managing Partner will attend the 
Board of Health meeting to present highlights of the statements and 
Audit Findings Report. 

Recommendation: 1. Review and approve Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

2. Review and accept Audit Findings Report

Schedule 9.1.2



Financial Statements of 

HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD 
PUBLIC HEALTH 

Year ended December 31, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Members of the Board of Hastings Prince Edward Public Health 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (the 
“Entity”), which comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021

• the statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then ended

• the statement of changes in net financial liabilities for the year then ended

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended

• and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies

(hereinafter referred to as the ''financial statements''). 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2021, and its results of operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 

accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 

standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
''Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements'' section of our 
auditors' report. 

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

Other Matter – Comparative Information 

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 were audited by another 
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on May 5, 2021. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance 
for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 

to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditors' report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,

we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors'

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity's to cease to continue

as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Kingston, Canada 

May 4, 2022 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Statement of Financial Position 

As at December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 

2021 2020

Financial assets: 
Cash $ 6,015,921 $ 4,402,960 
Due from Province of Ontario 35,064 553,696 
Accounts receivable 203,095 175,525 

6,254,080 5,132,181 

Financial liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,139,210 1,331,872
Due to Province of Ontario 442,621 211,529 
Deferred revenue 668,392 202,420 
Mortgage payable (note 8) 6,777,691 7,025,373

9,027,914 8,771,194 

(2,773,834) (3,639,013) 

Non-financial assets: 
Tangible capital assets (note 12) 10,271,757 10,614,326 
Prepaid expenses 87,160 196,643 

10,358,917 10,810,969 

Commitments (note 4) 
Economic dependence (note 5) 

Accumulated surplus (note 11) $ 7,585,083 $ 7,171,956 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

On behalf of the Board: 

______________________________  Member 

______________________________  Member 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus 

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 

Budget Actual Actual
2021 2021 2020

(note 10) 
Revenue: 

Provincial funding $ 13,118,043 $ 13,071,566 
Municipal levies 3,439,788 3,388,953 
Federal funding 128,988 144,638
Interest earned 10,000 43,358
Expense recoveries (note 7) 88,000 202,243 
Other revenue 237,181

$ 15,318,706 
3,439,788 

104,489 
29,501 
29,059
 23,826 12,337

17,022,000 18,945,369 16,863,095 

Expenses: 
Salaries 10,758,000 12,130,478 10,439,218 
Benefits 2,920,000 3,154,320 2,683,595 
Staff training 120,000 59,844 46,224
Travel 214,000 121,249 109,920
Building occupancy (note 8) 1,008,000  786,909  783,546 
Office and administration 621,000 558,649 543,589 
Program supplies 751,000 470,168 755,252
Professional and purchased services 630,000 860,601 410,676 
Amortization – 390,024 412,469 

17,022,000 18,532,242 16,184,489 

Annual surplus – 413,127 678,606 

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year – 7,171,956 6,493,350 

Accumulated surplus, end of year $ – $ 7,585,083 $ 7,171,956

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Liabilities 

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 

Budget Actual Actual
2021 2021 2020

(note 10) 
Annual surplus  $ – $ 413,127 $ 678,606 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets – (47,455) (267,880) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets – 390,024 412,469 
Change in prepaid expenses – 109,483 (114,179) 

Net decrease in net financial liabilities – 865,179 709,016 

Net financial liabilities at beginning of year – (3,639,013) (4,348,029) 

Net financial liabilities at end of year $ – $ (2,773,834) $ (3,639,013)

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2020 

2021 2020

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities: 
Annual surplus  $ 413,127 $ 678,606 
Amortization, which does not involve cash 390,024 412,469 
Change in non-cash assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable (27,571) 46,115 
Due from Province of Ontario 518,632 (405,856) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (192,661) 133,850
Due to Province of Ontario 231,092 19,836 
Deferred revenue 465,972 111,100  
Prepaid expenses 109,483  (114,179) 

1,908,098 881,941 

Capital activities: 
Purchase of tangible capital assets  (47,455) (267,880)

Financing activities: 
Principal repayments on mortgage payable (247,682) (237,726) 

Increase in cash 1,612,961 376,335 

Cash, beginning of year 4,402,960 4,026,625 

Cash, end of year $ 6,015,921 $ 4,402,960 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

5 

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (the "Health Unit") is governed by the Ontario Board of Public 
Health as mandated by the Health Protection and Promotion Act for the purposes of promoting and 

protecting public health. 

1. Significant accounting policies:

The financial statements of the Health Unit are the representation of management prepared in
accordance with accounting policies prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the

Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada for local governments and their boards. Significant

aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Health Unit are as follows:

(a) Basis of accounting:

The basis of accounting followed in the financial statement presentation includes revenues in

the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the revenues and

expenses in the period the goods and services are acquired and a liability is incurred or

transfers are due.

Provincial funding received from the Ministry of Health and the Ministry of Children, Community

& Social Services (collectively the “Ministries”) are subject to annual final reviews and approval
by the Ministries. Any adjustments resulting from the review will be reflected in the year of

Ministry approvals as an adjustment to provincial funding revenue on the Statement of

Operations and Accumulated Surplus.

(b) Deferred revenue:

Deferred revenue represents special program grants which have been received but for which
related program costs have yet to be incurred. These amounts will be recognized as revenue

in the fiscal year that the program costs are incurred.

(c) Government transfers:

Government transfers received relate to health programs. Transfers are recognized in the

financial statements as revenue in the period in which events giving rise to the transfer occur,

providing the transfers are authorized and eligibility criteria have been met and reasonable

estimates of the amounts can be made.

(d) Non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are not

intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

6 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e) Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and are classified
according to their functional use. The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets
are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Building and site improvements 40 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Communication systems 5 years 
Office equipment 5 years 
Computer equipment 5 years 
Signage 5 years 
Leasehold improvements remaining term of lease 

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use. 

When conditions indicate that a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to the Health Unit’s 

ability to provide services or the value of the future economic benefits associated with the 
tangible capital asset are less than its net book value, and the decline is expected to be 
permanent, the cost and accumulated amortization of the asset are reduced to reflect the 

revised estimate of the value of the asset’s remaining service potential. 

The resulting net adjustment would be reported as an expense on the Statement of Operations 
and Accumulated Surplus, however, no adjustments were recorded in the current year. 

(f) Pension benefits:

The Health Unit accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement

System (“OMERS”), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined contribution

plan. The OMERS plan specifies the retirement benefits to be received by employees based
on length of service and pay rates.

(g) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

7 

2. Pension agreement:

The Health Unit makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund

(“OMERS”), a multi-employer plan. The plan is a contributory defined benefit plan, which specifies

the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based on the length of service

and rates of pay.

OMERS is a multi-employer plan, therefore, any pension plan surpluses or deficits are a joint

responsibility of Ontario municipal organizations and their employees. As a result, the Health Unit

does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit. The last available report

for the OMERS plan was December 31, 2021. At that time, the plan reported a $3.1 billion actuarial
deficit (2020 - $3.2 billion actuarial deficit).

The amount contributed to OMERS for current services in 2021 was $986,031 (2020 - $969,740)

and is included as an expense on the Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus.

3. Liability for vested sick leave benefits:

Under the previous sick leave benefit plan, unused sick leave could be accumulated, and
employees could become entitled to a cash payment when they leave the Health Unit’s

employment.

In 1988, the Health Unit introduced an employee benefit package which includes short and long
term disability insurance. As part of the package, the accumulated sick leave days were frozen at

the levels existing at the date of implementation of the plan.

The liability for these accumulated days, to the extent that they have vested and could be taken in
cash by an employee on termination, amount to $4,859 (2020 – $4,747) and are included in

accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

4. Commitments:

The Health Unit leases office accommodation in Picton, Trenton and Bancroft and also leases office

equipment. The future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2022 $ 101,805 
2023 8,308 

$ 110,113 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

8 

4. Commitments (continued):

In addition to the above, the Health Unit has an outstanding contract for the purchase of two mobile

dental clinics in the amount of $675,698 plus taxes. Of this amount, $550,000 plus taxes remains

outstanding at December 31, 2021. The Ontario government has provided funding for the costs of

these mobile clinics, which is included as a component of deferred revenue on the Statement of

Financial Position.

5. Economic dependence:

The majority of the revenue of the Health Unit is provided by the Province of Ontario and by four

funding municipalities. The Province of Ontario funds 70% (2020 - 70%) of mandated public health
programs while the Counties of Hastings and Prince Edward and the Cities of Belleville and Quinte

West combine to fund the remaining 30% (2020 - 30%). In fiscal 2021, the Province of Ontario
provided mitigation funding in the amount of $1,120,000 (2020 - $1,120,000) to reduce the impact
of the 2019 funding change. Mitigation funding will continue for the 2022 fiscal year and will be

discontinued in fiscal 2023.

6. Reserves:

The Health Unit has established reserves as follows:

The capital reserve is restricted to building replacement, expansion, renovations or major repairs.

2021 2020

Capital reserve, beginning of year $ 1,989,035 $ 1,709,615 
Revenues for year – schedule 1 272,587 279,420 

Capital reserve, end of year 2,261,622 1,989,035 

HBHC reserve 45,859 45,859 

Total reserves $ 2,307,481 $ 2,034,894 

The Health Babies Healthy Children (“HBHC”) reserve is restricted to fund future costs of the 
program in excess of provincial funding. There were no changes to the HBHC reserve during the 
year. 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

9 

7. Expense recoveries:

Expense recoveries consist of:

2021 2020

Provincial reimbursement of clinic costs $ 17,102 $ 14,781 
Program recoveries 1,232 61,459 
Sexual health clinics 566 6,683 
Nicotine replacement clinics 4,515 11,020 
Tuberculosis testing – 5,896
Seniors dental 2,408 –   
Other  3,236 102,404 

$ 29,059 $ 202,243

8. Mortgage payable:

Mortgage payable consists of the following:

2021 2020

Bankers acceptance, interest at Canadian Imperial 
Bank of Commerce BA rate at time of renewal plus  
0.48% per annum acceptance fee. Interest is fixed  
with an interest rate swap agreement at 4.11%.  
Interest paid in advance at time of renewal with an  
adjustment at next monthly renewal to swapped rate. 
Principal is reduced each monthly renewal based on  
a blended monthly payment of principal and interest  
of $44,316. Remaining balances due January 2040. $ 6,777,691 $ 7,025,373 

The mortgage is secured by a general security agreement creating a first ranking security interest 
in all personal property of the Health Unit and a first mortgage over the property located at 179 

North Park Street, Belleville, Ontario. 

Interest expense of $283,823 (2020 - $285,187) is included in building occupancy on the Statement 
of Operations and Accumulated Surplus. 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

10 

8. Mortgage payable (continued):

Future principal repayments are estimated to be as follows:

2022 $ 258,056 
2023 268,864 
2024 280,125 
2025 291,857 
2026 304,081 
Thereafter 5,374,708 

$ 6,777,691 

9. Interest rate swap agreement:

The Health Unit entered into an interest rate swap agreement on March 5, 2014, effective January

2, 2015, which fixes the long-term interest rates associated with the mortgage payable. Under this

agreement, the Health Unit pays interest on the notional principal at a fixed rate, and receives
interest on the same notional principal at a variable rate based on Bankers’ Acceptance rates. At

the December 2021 renewal, the interest rate including stamping fee on the Bankers’ Acceptance
was 1.29% . There is no exposure to loss on the notional principal amount since the amount is

netted by agreement; however, as interest rates fluctuates, the fair value of the swap rises and

falls.

Under the swap agreement, the Health Unit pays a fixed rate of 4.11% per annum on the notional
principal. As at December 31, 2021, the notional principal of this agreement was $6,777,691 (2020

- $7,025,373) with the notional principal being reduced monthly in a systematic manner until the
contract matures on January 3, 2040.

10. Budget:

The Board of Health approved the budget for 2021 with a municipal levy of $3,439,788 on
December 2, 2020. During the year, the Health Unit entered into additional program agreements

or amendments to program agreements. The budgets of these program changes are not reflected

in the budget amounts presented.
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

11 

11. Accumulated surplus:

Accumulated surplus consists of:

2021 2020

Tangible capital assets $ 10,271,757 $ 10,614,326 
Mortgage payable (6,777,691) (7,025,373) 

3,494,066 3,588,953

Reserves (note 6) 2,307,481 2,034,894 
Unrestricted surplus 1,783,536 1,548,109 

$ 7,585,083 $ 7,171,956 

2021 2020 

Unrestricted surplus, beginning of year $ 1,548,109 $ 1,242,060 
Annual surplus 413,127 678,606 

1,961,236 1,920,666 

Change – tangible capital assets 342,569 144,589 
Principal repayments in year (247,682) (237,726) 
Capital reserve net revenues (272,587) (279,420) 

Unrestricted surplus, end of year $ 1,783,536 $ 1,548,109 

12. Tangible capital assets:

Balance at Transfers Transfers, Balance at 
December 31, and disposals and December 31, 

Cost  2020 additions adjustments 2021 

Land $ 81,814 $ – $ – $ 81,814 
Buildings and site improvements 11,797,074 6,207 – 11,803,281
Leasehold improvements 197,010 –   –   197,010 
Communications systems 93,585 –   –   93,585 
Office equipment 583,907 28,480 – 612,387
Computer equipment 642,028 12,768 – 654,796
Signage 20,942 –   –   20,942
Vehicles under construction 105,686 –   –   105,686

Total $ 13,522,046 $ 47,455 $  $ 13,569,501 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

12 

12. Tangible capital assets (continued):

Balance at Transfers, Balance at 
Accumulated December 31, Amortization disposals and December 31, 
amortization  2020 expense adjustments 2021 

Buildings and site improvements $ 1,610,423 $ 295,004 $ – $ 1,905,427 
Leasehold improvements 197,010 –   –   197,010 
Communications systems 88,331 4,503 – 92,834
Office equipment 441,117 41,511 – 482,628
Computer equipment 551,993 46,910 – 598,903
Signage 18,846 2,096 – 20,942

Total $ 2,907,720 $ 390,024 $ – $ 3,297,744 

Net book value Net book value 
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 

Land $ 81,814 $ 81,814 
Buildings and site improvements 10,186,651 9,897,854 
Leasehold improvements –   –   
Communications systems 5,254 751 
Office equipment 142,790 129,759 
Computer equipment 90,035 55,893 
Signage 2,096 –   
Vehicles under construction 105,686 105,686 

Total $ 10,614,326 $ 10,271,757 

13. Fair value of financial instruments:

The Health Unit’s financial instruments are comprised of cash, accounts receivable, accounts

payable and accrued liabilities, mortgage payable and interest rate swap agreement. Unless

otherwise noted, it is management’s opinion that the Health Unit is not exposed to significant

interest rate, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. Impairment of

accounts receivable at year end was $Nil (2020 - $Nil).

The fair values of the financial instruments approximate their carrying values due to the short term
nature of the instruments except for the mortgage loan payable and interest rate swap agreement.

The fair value of the underlying mortgage loan approximates carrying value due to the interest rate

being reset monthly. At December 31, 2021, the fair value of the remaining interest rate swap is a
liability of $1,041,490 (2020 - $1,607,281).

The Health Unit has access to a line of credit in the amount of $250,000 with its corporate banker

which bears interest at prime and was undrawn at year-end (2020 - undrawn).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

13 

14. Impact of COVID-19:

In March 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization

and has had a significant financial, market and social dislocating impact.

At the time of approval of these financial statements, the Health Unit has experienced the following
indicators of financial implications and undertaken the following activities in relation to the COVID-

19 pandemic:

• Increased costs related to the purchase of materials and supplies

• Closure of administrative and nonessential services within which it operates based on

Public Health recommendations

• Mandatory working from home requirements for those able to do so

• Continuous re-evaluation of the team’s work assignments

• Mandatory on-site client and staff screening and tracking protocols

The Health Unit incurred a total of $7,239,712 in COVID-19 related costs in fiscal 2021. Of this 
amount, mandatory program funding paid for expenses amounting to $5,269,770. The Health 
Unit made a separate submission to cover one-time COVID costs and received funding in the 

form of vaccine program costs and general COVID program funding of $1,294,942 and 

$675,000, respectively, to fund the balance of these costs. 

The Health Unit continues to respond to the pandemic and plan for continued operational 

and financial impacts during the 2022 fiscal year and beyond. Management has assessed the 

impact of COVID-19 and believes there are no significant financial issues as the Agency has 

access to sufficient financial resources to sustain operations in the coming year. The outcome and 

time frame to a recovery from the current pandemic is highly unpredictable, thus it is not practicable 

to estimate and disclose its financial effect on future operations at this time. 
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
Schedule 1 - Program Operations 

Year ended December 31, 2021 

Mandatory  100% MOH MCCSS

 Mandatory 
Core 

 Ontario Seniors 
Dental Care 

Program 

 COVID-19: 
Vaccine Program 

COVID-19: 
General Program

School-focused 
Nurses Initiative

PHI Practicum 
Student

Ontario Seniors 
Dental Capital: 
Mobile Clinic

Healthy Babies, 
Healthy Children

Childrens Oral 
Health Initiative

Canada Prenatal 
Nutrition 
Program

Operating Fund Capital Reserve 2021 2020

REVENUES

Provinical approved funding MOH 9,204,700    931,300      1,349,000   675,000      843,264      10,000    -    -     -     -     -   -     13,013,264   10,993,765    

Provinical approved funding MCCSS -     -    -    -    -    -    -    1,211,459    -     -     -   -     1,211,459     1,160,543      

Total Approved Provincial Funding 9,204,700    931,300      1,349,000   675,000      843,264      10,000    -    1,211,459    -     -     -   -     14,224,723   12,154,308    

Provincial funding MOH Salary 133,331       -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     133,331    135,709     

Provincial funding Mitigation    1,120,000 -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -        -        -   1,120,000           1,120,000 

Settlement adjustments        (46,897) -    (54,058)       - (58,393) -    -    -     -     -     -   -         (159,348) (338,451)    

Provincial funding    10,411,134 931,300      1,294,942   675,000      784,871      10,000    -    1,211,459    -     -     -   -        15,318,706 13,071,566    

Municipal levies 3,179,788    -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   260,000       3,439,788     3,388,953      

Federal funding -     -    -    -    -    -    -    -     44,725     59,763     -   -     104,489    144,638     

Other revenue -     -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     -      -   

Interest income 5,645     -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     11,269   12,587    29,501      43,358       

Expenditure Recoveries 26,651    2,408     -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     29,059      202,243     

Rental income 23,826    -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     23,826      12,337       

Total Revenues    13,647,046 933,708      1,294,942   675,000      784,871      10,000    -    1,211,459    44,725     59,763     11,269   272,587          18,945,369 16,863,095    

EXPENDITURES

Salaries 8,698,085    193,322      1,138,579   548,052      575,161      9,975      -    901,327       36,141     29,836     -   -     12,130,478   10,439,218    

Benefits      2,394,235 62,991   156,362      49,469   209,710      25     -    260,160       8,584       12,784     -   -           3,154,320 2,683,595      

Staff training 59,466    -    -    -    -    -    -    378    -     -     -   -     59,844      46,224       

Travel 113,834       -    -    -    -    -    -    6,815      - 600 -   -     121,249    109,920     

Building occupancy 742,934       32,725   -    -    -    -    -    11,250    -     -     -   -     786,909    783,546     

Office expenses and administration 430,268       23,228   - 73,903 -    -    -    31,250    -     -     -   -     558,649    543,589     

Program supplies 399,590       50,430   - 3,576 -    -    -    29      - 16,543 -   -     470,168    755,252     

Professional and purchased services 289,339       571,012      -    -    -    -    -    250    -     -     -   -     860,601    410,676     

Amortization 390,024       -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     390,024    412,469     

Total Expenditures    13,517,775 933,708      1,294,941   675,000      784,871      10,000    -    1,211,459    44,725     59,763     -   -        18,532,242 16,184,489    

Annual surplus (deficit) before other items 129,271       -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     11,269   272,587       413,127    678,606     

Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets -     -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     -      -   

Annual surplus (deficit)  129,271       -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     11,269   272,587       413,127    678,606     

RECONCILIATION TO FUNDING

Annual surplus (deficit) above 129,271       -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     11,269   272,587       413,127    678,606     

Add back amortization 390,024       -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     390,024    412,469     

Add transfers from reserve -     -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     -      -   

Add loss on disposal of tangible capital assets -     -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     -      -   

Add tangible capital asset adjustment -     -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     -      10,757       

Less tangible capital asset acquisitions (47,455)   -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     (47,455)     (278,637)    

Less principal repayments on mortgage (247,682)      -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     (247,682)   (230,476)    

Decrease (increase) in prepayment -     -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     -   -     -      -   

Funding Surplus 224,158       -    -    -    -    -    -    -     -     -     11,269   272,587       508,014    592,719     

TotalsONE TIME Federal Other

Schedule 9.1.2



Ha
st

ing
s P

rin
ce

 

Ed
w

ar
d 

Pu
bli

c 

He
alt

h 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 
20

21
 

P
re

pa
re

d 
on

 A
pr

il 
7,

 2
02

2 
fo

r 
th

e 
F

in
an

ce
 C

om
m

it
te

e 
m

ee
ti

ng
 o

n 
A

pr
il 

20
, 

20
22

 

kp
m

g.
ca

/a
ud

it
 

Schedule 9.1.3

https://home.kpmg.com/ca/en/home/services/audit.html


 R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

Ta
ble

 o
f c

on
te

nt
s 

A
ud

it 
hi

gh
lig

ht
s 

2 

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

3 

A
ud

it 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 re

su
lts

 
4 

U
nc

or
re

ct
ed

 a
nd

 c
or

re
ct

ed
 a

ud
it 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 

5 

C
on

tr
ol

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
6 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
t p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

an
d 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 

8 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

es
 

9 

A
pp

en
di

ce
s 

10
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1:

 O
th

er
 re

qu
ire

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

11
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2:

 H
ow

 d
o 

w
e 

de
liv

er
 a

ud
it 

qu
al

ity
? 

20
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
3:

 T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

in
 th

e 
au

di
t 

21
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
4:

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

in
si

gh
ts

 
22

 

Schedule 9.1.3



 R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
P

a
g

e
 | 

1 

KP
MG

 co
nt

ac
ts

 
Th

e 
co

nt
ac

ts
 a

t K
PM

G
 in

 c
on

ne
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
is

 re
po

rt 
ar

e:
 

Lo
ri 

H
ub

er
, C

PA
, C

A,
 L

PA
 

Le
ad

 A
ud

it 
En

ga
ge

m
en

t P
ar

tn
er

 

Te
l: 

61
3-

54
1-

73
20

 

la
hu

be
r@

kp
m

g.
ca

   

Ka
tie

 M
ah

on
, C

PA
, C

A,
 C

IT
P 

A
ud

it 
Se

ni
or

 M
an

ag
er

  

Te
l: 

61
3-

54
1-

73
40

 

km
ah

on
@

kp
m

g.
ca

   
 c

ai
tly

nc
ox

@
kp

m
g.

ca
 

N
is

h 
Ka

pu
ria

 

A
ud

it 
Se

ni
or

 A
cc

ou
nt

an
t 

Te
l: 

61
3-

54
1-

73
29

 

nk
ap

ur
ia

@
kp

m
g.

ca
   

nk
ap

ur
i a

@
kp

m
g.

ca
 

Schedule 9.1.3

mailto:lahuber@kpmg.ca
mailto:kmahon@kpmg.ca
mailto:caitlyncox@kpmg.ca
mailto:nkapuria@kpmg.ca
mailto:nkapuria@kpmg.ca


 R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
P

a
g

e
 | 

2 

Au
dit

 hi
gh

lig
ht

s 
Pu

rp
os

e 
of

 th
is

 re
po

rt1  
Th

e 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 th
is

 re
po

rt 
is

 to
 a

ss
is

t y
ou

, a
s 

a 
m

em
be

r o
f t

he
 F

in
an

ce
 C

om
m

itt
ee

, i
n 

yo
ur

 re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 re
su

lts
 o

f o
ur

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 o
f 

H
as

tin
gs

 P
rin

ce
 E

dw
ar

d 
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

lth
 (t

he
 “O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n”

) a
s 

at
 a

nd
 fo

r t
he

 p
er

io
d 

en
de

d 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
1.

   

Ex
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
r t

ra
ns

iti
on

 

W
e 

ha
ve

 w
or

ke
d 

cl
os

el
y 

w
ith

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
en

su
re

 a
 s

ea
m

le
ss

 tr
an

si
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ud

it 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

au
di

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

nd
 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

. 

St
at

us
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 

As
 o

f t
he

 d
at

e 
of

 th
is

 re
po

rt,
 w

e 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

st
at

em
en

ts
, w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pt

io
n 

of
 c

er
ta

in
 re

m
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s,

 w
hi

ch
 

in
cl

ud
e 

am
on

gs
t o

th
er

s:
 

–
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 o
ur

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t e

ve
nt

s 
re

vi
ew

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

up
 to

 th
e 

da
te

of
 o

ur
 a

ud
ito

rs
’ r

ep
or

t;
–

C
om

pl
et

in
g 

ou
r d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

;
–

O
bt

ai
ni

ng
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
’s

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l

st
at

em
en

ts
; a

nd
 

–
R

ec
ei

pt
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

ne
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
le

tte
r.

W
e 

w
ill 

up
da

te
 th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

, a
nd

 n
ot

 s
ol

el
y 

th
e 

C
ha

ir,
 o

n 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 m
at

te
rs

, i
f a

ny
, a

ris
in

g 
fro

m
 th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
.  

O
ur

 a
ud

ito
rs

’ r
ep

or
t, 

a 
dr

af
t o

f 
w

hi
ch

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

in
 A

pp
en

di
x 

1,
 w

ill 
be

 d
at

ed
 u

po
n 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 a

ny
 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s.
  

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 c

ha
ng

es
 fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t p

la
n 

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

no
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
ha

ng
es

 fr
om

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
pl

an
. 

1  T
hi

s 
re

po
rt 

to
 th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 is
 in

te
nd

ed
 s

ol
el

y 
fo

r t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

, a
nd

 th
e 

Bo
ar

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
or

s 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 o

th
er

 
pu

rp
os

e 
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ar
ty

. K
PM

G
 s

ha
ll 

ha
ve

 n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
or

 li
ab

ilit
y 

fo
r l

os
s 

or
 d

am
ag

es
 o

r c
la

im
s,

 if
 a

ny
, t

o 
or

 b
y 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 a

s 
th

is
 re

po
rt 

ha
s 

no
t b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r, 

an
d 

is
 n

ot
 in

te
nd

ed
 fo

r, 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

us
ed

 b
y,

 a
ny

 th
ird

 p
ar

ty
 o

r f
or

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 p

ur
po

se
. 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 ri

sk
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r s
ig

ni
fic

an
t m

at
te

rs
 

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t f

in
di

ng
s 

to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

re
la

te
d 

to
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
is

ks
 

or
 o

th
er

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t m

at
te

rs
. 

U
nc

or
re

ct
ed

 a
ud

it 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 re

qu
ire

 th
at

 w
e 

re
qu

es
t o

f m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 th
at

 a
ll 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
au

di
t m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 b
e 

co
rre

ct
ed

. W
e 

ha
ve

 a
lre

ad
y 

m
ad

e 
th

is
 re

qu
es

t o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
  

Se
e 

pa
ge

 5
. 

C
on

tr
ol

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 

W
e 

di
d 

no
t i

de
nt

ify
 a

ny
 c

on
tro

l d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
th

at
 w

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 to
 b

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 d
ef

ic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tro
l o

ve
r f

in
an

ci
al

 re
po

rti
ng

.  

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

ac
tic

es
 

Th
er

e 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

no
 in

iti
al

 s
el

ec
tio

ns
 o

f, 
or

 c
ha

ng
es

 to
, s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
ac

tic
es

 to
 b

rin
g 

to
 y

ou
r a

tte
nt

io
n.

 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 

W
e 

ar
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 
th

e 
et

hi
ca

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 th

at
 a

re
 re

le
va

nt
 to

 o
ur

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 

Schedule 9.1.3



R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
P

a
g

e
 | 

3 

Ma
te

ria
lity

 
M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
is

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
ris

ks
 o

f m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
, t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
ud

it 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 s
uc

h 
ris

ks
, a

nd
 to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
le

ve
l a

t w
hi

ch
 

w
e 

th
in

k 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 w
ill 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 in

flu
en

ce
 u

se
rs

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

t c
on

si
de

rs
 b

ot
h 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ita
tiv

e 
fa

ct
or

s.
  

To
 re

sp
on

d 
to

 a
gg

re
ga

tio
n 

ris
k,

 w
e 

de
si

gn
 o

ur
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
to

 d
et

ec
t m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
t a

 lo
w

er
 le

ve
l o

f m
at

er
ia

lit
y 

(e
.g

., 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
at

er
ia

lit
y 

or
, i

n 
th

e 
ca

se
 

of
 a

 g
ro

up
 a

ud
it,

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 m

at
er

ia
lit

y)
. 

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
G

ro
up

 a
m

ou
nt

 

M
et

ric
s 

R
el

ev
an

t m
et

ric
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 to
ta

l e
xp

en
se

s,
 to

ta
l r

ev
en

ue
 a

nd
 a

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 s

ur
pl

us
 

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

D
et

er
m

in
ed

 to
 p

la
n 

an
d 

pe
rfo

rm
 th

e 
au

di
t a

nd
 to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

s 
of

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

au
di

t a
nd

 o
f a

ny
 u

nc
or

re
ct

ed
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

.  

$4
00

,0
00

 

B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

Ba
se

d 
on

 to
ta

l e
xp

en
se

s 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
0.

 
$1

6,
00

0,
00

0 

%
 o

f B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

An
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
ra

ng
e 

fo
r t

he
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k 
is

 b
et

w
ee

n 
0.

5%
-3

%
.  

2.
5%

 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

U
se

d 
75

%
 o

f m
at

er
ia

lit
y,

 a
nd

 u
se

d 
pr

im
ar

ily
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

na
tu

re
, t

im
in

g 
an

d 
ex

te
nt

 o
f 

au
di

t p
ro

ce
du

re
s.

 
$3

00
,0

00
 

A
ud

it 
M

is
st

at
em

en
t P

os
tin

g 
Th

re
sh

ol
d 

(A
M

PT
) 

Se
t a

t 5
%

 o
f m

at
er

ia
lit

y,
 th

re
sh

ol
d 

us
ed

 to
 a

cc
um

ul
at

e 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

au
di

t. 
 

$2
0,

00
0 

. 

W
e 

re
po

rt
 to

 th
e 

Fi
na

nc
e 

C
om

m
itt

ee
: 

C
or

re
ct

ed
 a

ud
it 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 

U
nc

or
re

ct
ed

 a
ud

it 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 

Schedule 9.1.3



R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
P

a
g

e
 | 

4 

Au
dit

 ris
ks

 an
d 

re
su

lts
 

W
e 

hi
gh

lig
ht

 o
ur

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t f

in
di

ng
s 

in
 re

sp
ec

t o
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t r
is

ks
 a

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 o

ur
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n 
w

ith
 y

ou
 in

 th
e 

au
di

t p
la

n,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
an

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ris

ks
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

  

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

ep
or

tin
g 

ris
k 

N
ew

 o
r c

ha
ng

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
e?

 

Pr
es

um
pt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 fr
au

d 
fro

m
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
ve

rri
de

 o
f c

on
tro

ls
 

N
o 

N
o 

O
ur

 re
sp

on
se

 

M
an

ag
em

en
t i

s 
in

 a
 u

ni
qu

e 
po

si
tio

n 
to

 p
er

pe
tra

te
 fr

au
d 

be
ca

us
e 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t’s
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 m
an

ip
ul

at
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
re

co
rd

s 
an

d 
pr

ep
ar

e 
fra

ud
ul

en
t f

in
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 b
y 

ov
er

rid
in

g 
co

nt
ro

ls
 th

at
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
ap

pe
ar

 to
 b

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y.

 A
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
ve

rr
id

e 
of

 c
on

tro
ls

 w
ill 

va
ry

 fr
om

 
en

tit
y 

to
 e

nt
ity

, t
he

 ri
sk

 is
 n

ev
er

th
el

es
s 

pr
es

en
t i

n 
al

l e
nt

iti
es

. 

W
e 

to
ok

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
st

ep
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

is
 ri

sk
 a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
un

de
r p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

: 

—
  E

va
lu

at
ed

 th
e 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 c

on
tro

ls
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 jo

ur
na

l e
nt

rie
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

; 

—
  D

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

rit
er

ia
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

hi
gh

-ri
sk

 jo
ur

na
l e

nt
rie

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r a

dj
us

tm
en

ts
; a

nd
  

—
  T

es
te

d 
hi

gh
-ri

sk
 jo

ur
na

l e
nt

rie
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
at

 th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
re

po
rti

ng
 p

er
io

d.
 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 fi

nd
in

gs
 

W
e 

di
d 

no
t u

nc
ov

er
 a

ny
 is

su
es

 d
ur

in
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

de
sc

rib
ed

 a
bo

ve
.  

Schedule 9.1.3



R
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
Fi

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
P

a
g

e
 | 

5 

Un
co

rre
ct

ed
 an

d 
co

rre
ct

ed
 au

dit
 m

iss
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
Au

di
t m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

di
sc

lo
su

re
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 o

m
is

si
on

s.
 

U
nc

or
re

ct
ed

 a
ud

it 
m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 
Ba

se
d 

on
 b

ot
h 

qu
al

ita
tiv

e 
an

d 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

, m
an

ag
em

en
t h

av
e 

de
ci

de
d 

no
t t

o 
co

rre
ct

 c
er

ta
in

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 re

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 u
s 

th
at

 th
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at
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e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. T

hi
s 

m
an

ag
em

en
t r
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at
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at
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at
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at
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 m
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 s
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at
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’ r
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at
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at
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 d
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Draft auditors’ report 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Members of the Board of Hastings Prince Edward Public Health 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (the 
“Entity”), which comprise: 

• the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021

• the statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then ended

• the statement of changes in net financial liabilities for the year then ended

• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended

• and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

(hereinafter referred to as the ''financial statements'').

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2021, and its results of operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ''Auditors' Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements'' section of our auditors' report. 

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion. 

Other Matter – Comparative Information 
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 were audited by another 
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on May 5, 2021. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for 
the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting 
process. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt the Entity’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

• Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 
Kingston, Canada  
Date 
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Draft management representation letter 
KPMG LLP 
Chartered Professional Accountants 
863 Princess Street, Suite 400 
Kingston, Ontario  K7L 5N4 
Canada 

May 4, 2022 

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your review was for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”) of Hastings Prince Edward 
Public Health (“the Entity”) as at and for the period ended December 31, 2021. 

General: 

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as set out in 
Attachment I to this letter. 

We also confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered 
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Responsibilities: 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated March 1,
2022, including for:

a) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and believe that these financial
statements have been prepared and present fairly in accordance with the relevant financial reporting
framework.

b) providing you with all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements (“relevant information”), such as financial records, documentation and other
matters, including:

— the names of all related parties and information regarding all relationships and transactions with
related parties;

— the complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes
have not yet been prepared, of board of directors and committees of the board of directors that 
may affect the financial statements. All significant actions are included in such summaries. 

c) providing you with unrestricted access to such relevant information.

d) providing you with complete responses to all enquiries made by you during the engagement.

e) providing you with additional information that you may request from us for the purpose of the
engagement.

f) providing you with unrestricted access to persons within the Entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

g) such internal control as we determined is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. We also acknowledge and
understand that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

h) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

Schedule 9.1.3



Report to the Finance Committee P a g e  | 15 

2) We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or maintenance of
internal control over financial reporting of which we are aware.

Fraud & non-compliance with laws and regulations: 

3) We have disclosed to you:

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as
a result of fraud.

b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of that involves:

— management;

— employees who have significant roles in internal control over financial reporting; or

— others

where such fraud or suspected fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial statements,
communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations,
including all aspects of contractual agreements, whose effects should be considered when preparing
financial statements.

e) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing
the financial statements.

Subsequent events: 

4) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant financial reporting
framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements have been adjusted or disclosed.

Related parties: 

5) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties.

6) We have disclosed to you all the related party relationships and transactions/balances of which we are
aware.

7) All related party relationships and transactions/balances have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.

Estimates: 

8) The methods, the data and the significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, and their
related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable
in the context of the applicable financial reporting framework.

Going concern: 

9) We have provided you with all information relevant to the use of the going concern assumption in the
financial statements.

10) We confirm that we are not aware of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Misstatements: 

11) The effects of the uncorrected misstatements described in Attachment II are immaterial, both individually
and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.

12) We approve the corrected misstatements identified by you during the audit described in Attachment III.

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Schedule 9.1.3
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Non-SEC registrants or non-reporting issuers: 

13) We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any applicable Canadian
securities act) and is not a United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Issuer (as defined
by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

14) We also confirm that the financial statements of the Entity will not be included in the group financial
statements of a Canadian reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer audited by any member of
the KPMG organization.

Yours very truly, 

HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 

_______________________________________ 
By: Ms. Valerie Dunham, Director of Corporate 
Services 

_______________________________________ 
By: Ms. Amy Rankin, Finance Manager, Corporate Services 
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Attachment I – Definitions 
Materiality 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. 

Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.    

Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by perception of the 
needs of, or the characteristics of, the users of the financial statements and, the size or nature of a misstatement, 
or a combination of both while also considering the entity’s own circumstances. 

Fraud & error 

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or disclosures in 
financial statements to deceive financial statement users. 

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied by false or misleading 
records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have been pledged without 
proper authorization. 
An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an amount or a 
disclosure. 
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Attachment II – Summary of Audit Misstatements Schedules 
Summary of uncorrected misstatements: 

Statement of Financial Position 
effect1 Statement of 

Operations and 
Accumulated 

Surplus effect1

$ Description 
Assets 

$ 
Liabilities 

$ 

Accumulated 
Surplus 

$ 

Audit misstatements greater than 
$20,000 individually  

Dr. Accumulated surplus 

Cr. Professional and purchased services 

To record the 2021 impact of the 2020 
uncorrected difference resulting from the 
prepaid expense of IT contract 

-

- 

-

- 

63,821 

(63,821) 

- 

(63,821) 

Dr. Benefits  

Cr. Accumulated surplus 

To record the 2021 impact of the 2020 
uncorrected difference resulting from 
under accrual of vacation  

-

- 

-

- 

99,208 

(99,208) 

99,208 

- 

TOTAL UNCORRECTED AUDIT 
MISSTATEMENTS - - - (35,387) 
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Attachment III – Summary of Audit Misstatements Schedules 
Summary of corrected misstatements: 

Statement of Financial Position 
effect1 Statement of 

Operations and 
Accumulated 

Surplus effect1

$ Description 
Assets 

$ 
Liabilities 

$ 

Accumulated 
Surplus 

$ 

Audit misstatements greater than 
$20,000 individually  

Dr.  Building Occupancy 

Cr.  Account payable and accrued 
liabilities 

To correct debit balance in accounts 
payable 

-

- 

-

(530)

530 

- 

530 

- 

Dr.  Benefits 

Cr.  Account payable and accrued 
liabilities 

To correct OMERs entry 

-

- 

-

(76,501)

76,501 

- 

76,501 

- 

Dr.  Benefits 

Cr.  Account payable and accrued 
liabilities 

To correct vacation and frozen sick 
leaves 

-

- 

-

(130,640)

130,640 

- 

130,640 

- 

TOTAL CORRECTED AUDIT 
MISSTATEMENTS - (207,671) 207,671 207,671 

1 Debit (Credit) 
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Board of Health Briefing Note 

To: Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health 

Prepared by: Valerie Dunham, Director of Corporate Services/Associate CEO 

Approved by: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Acting Medical Officer of Health and CEO 

Date: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 

Subject: Financial Policies Review 

Nature of Board 
Engagement  

 For Information 

 Strategic Discussion 

 Board approval and motion required 

 Compliance with Accountability Framework 

 Compliance with Program Standards 

Action Required: Motion for approval of three financial policies including Accounting Practices, 
Investments and Capital Funding Plan. 

Background: Under the Fiduciary Requirements Domain of the Public Health Accountability 
Framework, the Board of Health shall ensure that administration implements 
appropriate financial management and oversight through an assortment of 
policies and procedures. Three key policies are recommended for approval by the 
Board of Health. 

Accounting Practices 
This policy was last reviewed in 2019.  Several key changes are being 
recommended as follows. 
⬧ Original budget preparation was based on the fundamental concept of a

balanced budget.  In view of the most recent experience of the pandemic
and resulting budget deficits, the policy has been edited to provide the
consideration of a deficit budget in exceptional circumstances.

⬧ Recommendation to maintain the greater of one month’s regular operating
expenses or $1.5 million in Operating Fund Reserve.

⬧ Recommendation for the retention of a minimum amount of $2.0 million in
the Capital Funding Reserve.

⬧ Clarified signing authorities for use of the Operating Fund Reserve.
⬧ Added Mobile Dental Clinic as an amortization class.
⬧ Added the annual review of amounts in the Operating and Capital Reserves.

Investments 
This policy was last reviewed in 2016.  Minor edits have been incorporated 
including the requirement of maintaining the Operating Account in an interest 
bearing account in accordance with the provincial organizational standards.  In 
light of changing interest rates, procedures strengthened to review interest rates 
and returns on a regular basis and invested when feasible. 

Capital Funding 

This is a new policy that has been developed to outline the process to secure 
capital funding for projects in future. 

Recommendation: Finance Committee has reviewed policies and will be recommending for approval 
by Board of Health.  
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Section: FINANCE 
Policy Title: Accounting Practices 
Approved by: Board of Health  
Date: May 4, 2022  

Page 1 of 3 

PURPOSE: 
To ensure Hastings Prince Edward Public Health’s (Agency) accounting practices are consistent 
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for non-profit organizations and the 
requirements of funding sources and to outline the process for the development of the annual 
Agency budget. 

To specify the process for maintaining and using reserve funds and to ensure an appropriate level of 
financial resources to protect against unpredicted liabilities, cover contingency or emergency 
expenses and provide for future capital requirements.     

POLICY: 

The Agency shall comply with the requirements of funding sources and shall follow Canadian 
generally accepted accounting principles for non-profit organizations.  

Significant accounting practices include the following: 

Budget Preparation  
The Agency shall prepare a consolidated budget for all program areas for review by the Finance 
Committee of the Board of Health (Board) to comply with Ministry of Health (MOH) budget 
submission requirements and the municipal budgeting cycle. The budget proposed shall be a 
balanced budget and incorporate anticipated revenues and expenses of all key program areas of the 
Agency.  In exceptional circumstances, such as a public health emergency, a deficit budget may be 
proposed to the Board.  

The Finance Committee shall review and make recommendations for change as required and shall 
present to the entire Board for approval.  The budget will be presented in advance of the fiscal year 
whenever possible.  

The approved budget shall be forwarded to each obligated municipality, identifying the respective 
levy for the current budget year and a schedule of payments.   

Subsequent submissions of budgets to specific funders shall be consistent with the budget approved 
by the Board.  Any variances from the approved budget shall be disclosed to the Board for review 
and approval.  Subsequent changes due to new programs, additional funding received or changes to 
program funding requirements will be reported to the Board as variances in quarterly financial 
reports.   

Fund Accounting 
The accounting system for the Agency shall maintain a minimum of two funds: 

➢ an Operating Fund, and
➢ a Capital Fund.

Additional permanent or temporary funds may be established, as required, with the approval of the 
Board.  Accounting procedures for each fund shall ensure that expenses and revenues within each 
fund are clearly and traceably separated.  Interest earnings shall be calculated for each fund on a 
monthly basis.   
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HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Section: FINANCE 
Policy Title: Accounting Practices 

Page 2 of 3 

Operating Fund 
The Operating Fund shall account for the day-to-day program activities of the Agency supported by 
operating funds from organizations including the Ministry of Health, Ministry of Children, Community 
and Social Services, Public Health Agency of Canada, Health Canada and other contracted program 
funding sources. 

Each key program shall be identified as a separate cost centre within the fund in accordance with 
the terms of funding contracts and accountability agreements.   

Operating Fund Reserve  
The Operating Fund Reserve shall account for retainable surplus funds generated through 
operations.  The Operating Fund will be restricted for unforeseen operating expenses, catastrophic 
expenses and contingencies.  Expenditures from the Operating Fund Reserve shall be approved by 
the Medical Officer of Health and/or Board Signatories in accordance with signing authority limits 
established in the By-law to govern the banking, financial activities and duties of the Auditor of the 
Board of Health. 

The Operating Fund Reserve should be maintained at all times at the greater of one month’s regular 
operating expenses or $1.5 Million unless an exceptional situation is reviewed and approved by the 
Board of Health.  Regular operating expenses refer to typical transfer payment amounts from 
municipal, provincial and federal sources and exclude one-time project funds or extraordinary 
funding as well as expenditure recoveries or any transfers from reserves. 

Capital Fund Reserve 
The Capital Fund Reserve shall be restricted to building renovations, major repairs, leasehold 
improvements and other capital investments or cost-shared one-time capital funding requests as 
approved by the Board of Health.  

The amount of the Capital Fund Reserve will be reviewed annually in relation to the Capital Funding 
Plan policy however a minimum of $2.0 Million shall be maintained in the Reserve at all times unless 
an exceptional situation is reviewed and approved by the Board of Health.  

Audited, unexpended municipal funds for program activities are eligible to be transferred into the 
Operating Fund or Capital Fund Reserve.  The allocation of unexpended municipal funds will be 
reviewed on an annual basis by the Finance Committee of the Board of Health.  Any transactions 
within the Operating Fund or Capital Fund Reserve shall be reported with the presentation of the 
audited financial statements. 

Capital Assets and Amortization  
Capital assets shall be recorded at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a 
straight-line basis.  Amortization costs shall be calculated for any individual capital purchase costing 
in excess of $5,000.  The Agency shall maintain separate accumulated amortization accounts for 
each significant capital asset category.  At a minimum the following categories shall be maintained: 

a) Building & Site Improvements 40 years 
b) Mobile Dental Clinic 10 years 
c) Vehicles 5 years 
d) Communication Systems 5 years 
e) Office Furniture and Equipment 5 years 
f) Computers and Software 3 years 
g) Leasehold Improvements  Term of lease 

Schedule 9.1.4



HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Section: FINANCE 
Policy Title: Accounting Practices 

Page 3 of 3 

Procedure: 

1. The Finance Committee will review the allocation of unexpended municipal funds on an
annual basis.

2. Transactions within the Operating Fund or Capital Fund Reserve shall be reported by the
auditors with the presentation of the audited financial statements.

3. Amounts in the Operating and Capital Reserves will be reviewed annually.
4. Amortization expenses will be set up on an annual basis prior to the preparation of the

audited financial statements.

Created:  September 7, 2016 
Revised:  September 4, 2019 

May 4, 2022 

Schedule 9.1.4



HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Section: FINANCE 

Policy Title: Investments 

Approved by: Board of Health 

Date: May 4, 2022  

Page 1 of 1 

PURPOSE: 
To ensure that available cash assets of Hastings Prince Edward Public Health are invested in a 
prudent manner in order to maximize returns at an appropriate level of risk.  

POLICY: 
Available cash in the Operating and Capital Fund Reserves of HPEPH may be invested in low-risk, 
money market instruments that guarantee security of the principal investment and that yield a 
greater return than interest earnings on the operating bank account. Invested funds shall be in high 
liquidity instruments in order to provide operating cash as required. Prior to investment decisions, 
short and long term cash flow requirements from both the Operating and Capital Fund Reserves 
shall be taken into consideration.    

Available cash from operating funding contracts shall be held in an interest-bearing account at a 
Canadian Chartered Bank, subject to the terms of the funding contract.  Any interest earned shall be 
recorded as interest earnings for the contract within the fiscal year earned.    

The Finance Committee of the Board of Health shall review investment holdings and returns on an 
annual basis.    

PROCEDURE: 
1. The Operating Account, Operating Fund Reserve and Capital Fund Reserve will be

maintained in an interesting bearing bank account.

2. Interest earnings will be allocated to the appropriate funding contract and/or reserve account
in accordance with contractual requirements and policy.

3. Interest rates and returns will be reviewed on a regular basis and available cash in the
reserve funds may be invested subject to the limitations of this Investment Policy and cash
flow requirements.

4. All investments shall be authorized by two signing officers of HPEPH in accordance with
approved signing authority limits established in the By-law to govern the banking, financial
activities and duties of the Auditor of the Board of Health.

5. Investments held by the agency will be reported to the Board of Health annually.

Created:  September, 2016 
Revised: May 4, 2022 

Schedule 9.1.4



HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD PUBLIC HEALTH 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

Section: FINANCE 

Policy Title: Capital Funding 

Approved by: Board of Health  

Date: May 4, 2022  

Page 1 of 1 

PURPOSE: 
In accordance with the Agency “by-law to govern the management and financing of the Board of 
Health’s physical properties”, the Board of Health (Board), shall maintain a Capital Funding Plan to 
ensure funding for capital projects.  This policy outlines the process to secure capital funding for 
required projects.     

POLICY: 
1. Whenever possible, applications for capital projects shall be made to the Community Health

Capital Program maintained by the Ministry of Health or one-time costs that are eligible through
the Ministry of Health Annual Service Plan process.

2. The Board Capital Fund Reserve may be used for building renovations, major repairs, leasehold
improvements and other capital investments or cost-shared one-time capital funding requests, as
approved by the Board.

3. Projects requiring the use of the Capital Fund Reserve shall be reviewed and monitored through
a designated Property Committee of the Board.

4. To ensure reserve funding for foreseeable capital expenses, a Facilities Assessment Report,
including projected building repairs and replacements, shall be prepared by an external firm for
premises owned by HPEPH every ten years or more frequently as required.

PROCEDURE: 
1. The Capital Fund Reserve will be reviewed on an annual basis during the review of the audited

financial statements.

2. The Director of Corporate Services will recommend appointment of an ad-hoc Property
Committee of the Board, to review and recommend funding of any capital projects through the
Capital Fund Reserve.

3. Approval for use of the Capital Fund Reserve will be provided by the Board of Health.

4. The Director of Corporate Services will ensure the completion of Facilities Assessment Reports
as required.

Created: May 4,2022 
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Board of Health Briefing Note 

To: Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health 

Prepared by: Valerie Dunham, Director of Corporate Services/Associate CEO 

Approved by: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Acting Medical Officer of Health and CEO 

Date: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 

Subject: 2023 Municipal Levy – Implications without Mitigation Funding 

Nature of Board 
Engagement 

 For Information 

 Strategic Discussion 

 Board approval and motion required 

 Compliance with Accountability Framework 

 Compliance with Program Standards 

Action Required: Board of Health requested to support the writing of letters to Ministry staff and the 
Minister of Health to table implications of cancelling the mitigation funding 
provided to health units over the past three years. 

Background: In 2019, the provincial government changed the cost-sharing model in public 
health from a 75%-25% calculation to a 70%-30% model. The Ministry of Health 
(Ministry) also implemented cost-sharing to programs that were formerly funded 
100% by the Ministry. These two changes resulted in an increase of required 
municipal funding at Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) in the 
amount of $1,120,000, which was scheduled to commence January 2020. 

For the past three years (2020 – 2022), the Ministry has provided “mitigation 
funding” to HPEPH in the amount of $1,120,000 to offset this increase to the 
municipal sector. The mitigation funding is scheduled to end on December 31, 
2022 meaning municipalities will need to shoulder significant levy increases. 

Prior to 2019, our partner municipalities were contributing more than the required 
75%/25% so do not owe the entire $1,120,000. Effective January 1, 2023, the 
shortfall in funding is $752,935. This amount includes the continuation of the 
municipal contribution of $260,000 per year for the building fund which was a 
component of the original building loan. 

It is important to understand that in a cost sharing model, if the Ministry provides 
an additional $100,000 in base funding, the Ministry contribution represents 70% 
of the program costs. This increase also costs the municipal sector 30% or 
approx. $43,000. (Total program budget of $143,000 – 30% is $43,000). The 
shortfall figures provided are based on a 1% increase from the Ministry in 2022. 
Any additional increase to the base funding from the Ministry will lead to an 
additional municipal shortfall.  

In addition to the financial impact to the municipalities to absorb the additional 
funding required, there is a significant potential service impact to HPEPH in 
dealing with this issue. Past budgets have included both the mitigation funding of 
$1.1 million but have also included the additional contributions in excess of the 
original 75%/25% cost sharing model which amount to $355,000 for program 
contributions and $260,000 for the building fund. Although these funds have 
been transferred into reserves in the past, they have recently been used to 
balance deficit budgets. With the loss of the mitigation funding, the $355,000 
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municipal contribution will be rolled into the required 30% municipal funding 
which is an overall loss to the HPEPH budget and planned service delivery. 

The attached summary provides an indication of the additional funding required 
from each municipality to reach the required levy in 2023.  The Finance 
Committee met on April 20, 2022 and tabled the importance of continuing the 
building fund for future repairs and replacements.  

Recently, Valerie Dunham, Director of Corporate Services, met with the 
Treasurers of each municipality and reviewed the summary and potential impacts 
to budgets. Feedback has indicated that these increases are very concerning 
particularly given community needs and the demand for services in each 
municipality. Initial calculations indicate that the removal of the mitigation 
funding would result in increases of .3% - 1.1% on municipal levies in 2023. In 
small communities, the ability of the local taxpayer to continue to absorb tax 
increases needs to be weighed against potential service cuts. Our municipal 
partners have expressed strong concerns about the impact of service cuts in their 
respective communities. 

Recommendation: The following steps are recommended. 

1. Board of Health asked to support writing two letters about the impact to the
community and municipalities of losing mitigation funding.  One letter to be
issued to Ministry staff to document the issue followed by a letter to the
appointed Minister of Health post-election.

2. Board of Health council members to lead discussions with municipalities later
this year in preparation for the 2023 budget.

3. Director of Corporate Services to follow up with Municipal Treasurers.
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Board of Health Briefing Note 

To: Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health 

Prepared by: Alisha Hanes, Program Manager 

Approved by: Shelly Brown, Director of Community Programs 

Date: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 

Subject: Immunizations Update 

Nature of Board 
Engagement 

 For Information 

 Strategic Discussion 

 Board approval and motion required 

 Compliance with Accountability Framework 

 Compliance with Program Standards 

Action Required: No action required 

Background: The Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS) requires that the board of 
health shall: 

• promote and provide provincially funded immunization programs and
services to eligible persons in the health unit, including underserved and
priority populations.

• have a contingency plan to deploy board of health staff capable of
providing vaccine preventable diseases outbreak management and
control, such as mass immunization, in the event of a community
outbreak.

• assess, maintain records, and report on:
o the immunization status of children enrolled in licensed child care

settings;
o the immunization status of children attending schools; and
o immunizations administered at board of health-based clinics.

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) is in full compliance with OPHS 
as demonstrated by the following activities: 

• COVID-19 vaccinations including mass sites, long-term care homes
(LTCH), retirement homes (RH), and mobile vaccine clinics

• Routine immunization clinics being offered to those 0 to 18 years of age
without a health care provider

• Grade 7 vaccines and catch up clinics (grade 8) being offered in schools

• High risk vaccines being offered to priority populations

Future Recovery Plans: 

• Expand routine immunizations to those over 18 years
• Proactively planning for Fall/Winter COVID-19, flu vaccination clinic and

possible 0 to 4 years COVID-19 vaccine (if approved).
• Immunization of School Pupils Act (ISPA) assessment of all school-aged

immunization records
• Cold chain inspections for all vaccine delivery agents in our region

including those with COVID-19 vaccine
• Daycare immunization record assessment
• Continue to offer catch up immunization for Grades 7 to 12 who have not

completed school-based immunizations

Reviewed By: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health and CEO 

Schedule 11.1



Board of Health May 4, 2022

Immunizations Program Update 1

hpePublicHealth.ca

Bill Sherlock
Program Manager

(on behalf of Alisha Hanes)

Board of Health

May 4, 2022

Immunization Program 
Update

hpePublicHealth.ca

1. COVID Immunization Recap

2. Current State

3. Future State

Immunization Programs and Services

hpePublicHealth.ca

PHU Staff Started first COVID-19 Immunization 
clinic January 17, 2021 at LTCH. 
• 17 LTCH’s completed 1st and 2nd doses = 

1969 doses (Jan/Feb)
• 18 Retirement Homes 1st and 2nd doses = 

1076 doses (April/ May)

COVID-19 Immunization Recap



Board of Health May 4, 2022

Immunizations Program Update 2

hpePublicHealth.ca

• March 1, 2021- First Mass Immunization Clinic  
at Loyalist College 
(Administered 60,000+ doses)

• March / April expanded Mass Immunization 
sites to Picton, Bancroft and Centre Hastings 

• April 2021 expanded to Trenton Arena 
• May 2021 expanded to Quinte Sports and 

Wellness  (Administered 150,000+ doses)

COVID Immunization Recap  

hpePublicHealth.ca

Mobile Team 

• 60+ locations in August and September 2021
• All across our region 
• Homebound patients
• 4,400+ doses administered

COVID Immunization Recap

hpePublicHealth.ca

• Routine Immunization clinics being offered to 
those 0 to 18 years without HCP

• Grade 7 vaccines being offered in schools
• Catch up clinics being offered in schools for 

Grade 8 students 
• COVID-19 clinics being offered at PHU
• High-risk vaccines being offered to priority 

populations

Current Recovery Status



Board of Health May 4, 2022

Immunizations Program Update 3

hpePublicHealth.ca

• Expand routine immunizations to those over 
18 years by Summer 2022 

• Proactively preparing for Fall/Winter COVID-19 
and flu vaccination clinic and possible 0 to 4 
years COVID-19 vaccine (if approved).  

• ISPA (Immunization of School Pupils Act) 
assessment of all school-aged immunization 
records (May to August 2022)

Future Recovery Plans

hpePublicHealth.ca

• Cold Chain Inspections for all Vaccine 
Delivery agents in our region including those 
with COVID-19 vaccines - Summer 2022

• Daycare immunization record assessment -
Summer 2022.

• Continue to offer catch-up immunizations for 
Grades 7 to 12 who have not completed 
school-based immunizations

Future Recovery Plan

hpePublicHealth.ca

9

• Hastings-Quinte Paramedic Services
• Local Pharmacies
• Hastings Housing Services 
• Loyalist College (Mark Kirkpatrick)

• City of Belleville (Quinte Sports &Wellness Centre)

• Quinte Health Care
• Bancroft Family Health Team
• Prince Edward County/PEFHT
• City of Quinte West 

(Batawa & Duncan McDonald Arena) 

• Madoc Township – Lynn Reid
• Gateway Community Health Centre

• Centre Hastings Family Health Team
• Lakeview Family Health Team
• Queens Family Health Team
• Long-Term Care Homes
• Town of Deseronto
• Mohawks Bay of Quinte
• Pathways to Independence
• Quinte Mall
• HPEDSB, ALCDSB, KPRDSB, 

Marc Garneau 
• Canadian Forces Base Trenton
• Bayview Medical Centre

Thank You



Board of Health Briefing Note 

To: Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health 

Prepared by: Sheryl Farrar and Bill Sherlock, Program Managers 

Approved by: Shelly Brown, Director of Community Programs 

Date: Wednesday, May 4, 2022 

Subject: Healthy Schools Program Update 

Nature of 
Board 
Engagement  

 For Information 

 Strategic Discussion 

 Board approval and motion required 

 Compliance with Accountability Framework 

 Compliance with Program Standards (School Health Standard) p.52 

Action 
Required: 

No action required 

Background: The current Healthy Schools program was implemented in Fall 2020, following a 
situational assessment completed in partnership with Hastings Prince Edward District 
School Board and Algonquin Lakeshore Catholic District School Board. The program 
has been supported by additional funding for school-focused nurses since Fall 2020 to 
provide support for COVID-19 prevention and management in schools. 

The Healthy Schools Program is designed to work with key decision-makers such as 
municipalities, health care professionals, educators, parents and students to improve 
the health and well-being of school-aged children in Hastings and Prince Edward 
Counties (HPEC). 

The Healthy Schools team is a multi-disciplinary team comprised of health promoters, 
public health nurses, a registered dietitian and a public health inspector who have 
been assigned to families of schools across the jurisdiction. 

This evidence-based program has a robust evaluation and monitoring plan which 
demonstrates effectiveness of the interventions implemented by the Healthy Schools 
team. 

 Over the past two years, COVID-19 activities have included: 

• Case and contact management
• Infection prevention and control including:

• staff personal protective equipment and student masking
• cohorting and physical distancing
• hand hygiene and respiratory etiquette training
• environmental cleaning consultation

• School-based COVID-19 vaccination
• Public health clinics in secondary schools

The Healthy Schools Program Annual Report 2020/2021 is available here to provide 
additional detail. 

Since January 2022, the Healthy Schools team has also provided COVID-19 support 
to all licensed childcare facilities in HPEC. 

Future plans for supporting recovery of children from effects of the COVID-19 
pandemic are underway. 

Reviewed By: Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health and CEO 

Schedule 11.2

https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.hpepublichealth.ca/healthy-schools/
https://hpepublichealth.ca/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/HS-Annual-Report-2020-2021.pdf


Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health May 4, 2022

Healthy Schools Program Update 1

hpePublicHealth.ca

Healthy Schools Program Update
Sheryl Farrar, Program Manager
Bill Sherlock, Program Manager 

Board of Health
May 4, 2022

hpePublicHealth.ca

• Evidence‐informed

• Public health nurses and health 
promoters

• Assigned to families of schools

• Robust evaluation and monitoring 
plan

• Key topics – COVID support, mental 
health and substance use

2

Healthy Schools Program

hpePublicHealth.ca

• COVID‐19 support
• Case/contact tracing

• Staff PPE and student masking 

• Cohorting, physical distancing

• Hand hygiene, respiratory etiquette

• Environmental cleaning

• PHNs only  
• School‐based COVID‐19 vaccination

• Public health clinics in secondary schools

NOTE: All HPE childcare facilities were assigned to teams in Jan 2022. 

3

Healthy Schools Team Roles / Responsibilities



Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health May 4, 2022

Healthy Schools Program Update 2

hpePublicHealth.ca

Confirmed cases of COVID-19: Ontario,
March 2020 to March 2022 

All Schools Closed  
Mar. 14 – Sept. 8

(Including Summer Break)

All 
Schools 
Closed  
Jan ‐
Feb

All 
Schools 
Closed  
Jan. 2‐
14

All Schools Closed  
Apr 12‐Sept 8

(including summer 
break)

SF2

hpePublicHealth.ca

Surveillance

hpePublicHealth.ca

6

Public Health Clinics in Schools

• Smoking/vaping prevention and cessation

• Sexual health ‐ birth control, STI prevention 
and treatment

• Health education – stress, healthy eating, 
physical activity, sleep, tech usage

• Mental health and substance use referrals

• Harm reduction 

• Vaccination



Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health May 4, 2022

Healthy Schools Program Update 3

hpePublicHealth.ca

• Member of Mental Health Leadership Committee (HPEDSB)

• PHN assigned to work closely with school board mental health leads 

• School‐based PHNs work with school social workers 
• In clinic:

• Provide health education

• Referrals for mental health and substance use

• In classes:
• Group presentations “Mental Health 101”, vaping prevention

7

Mental Health and Substance Use

hpePublicHealth.ca

• 2021‐2022 School Year
• Vaping prevention and cessation in Grades 7 to 12

• Mental health and healthy relationships education

• Continued public health clinics

• Attend in‐person events such as kindergarten orientation

• Regroup health promoters and train to support elementary schools 

• Expand PHN presence into ALCDSB secondary schools
• Partner with school boards to address COVID‐19 pandemic recovery 
priorities for students and staff8

Next Steps

hpePublicHealth.ca

• Annual report for school year
• Performance measures:

• surveys to school and HPEPH staff, 
parents as applicable

• Clinical service reports

• Health education and promotion 
activities

• Population measures such as 
graduation rates, substance use 
to be developed and monitored in 
partnership 

9

Monitoring and Evaluation



Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health May 4, 2022

Healthy Schools Program Update 4

hpePublicHealth.ca

10

Annual Report 2020-2021 Results

hpePublicHealth.ca

• Survey participants were either 
satisfied or very satisfied with all 
COVID supports that HPEPH 
provided

• School staff and HPEPH staff were 
either satisfied or very satisfied 
with connection and partnership 
between schools and public 
health  

11

Annual Report 2020-2021 Results

hpePublicHealth.ca

12

Annual Report 2020-2021 Results
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Healthy Schools Program Update 5

hpePublicHealth.ca

• School clinics:
• “offer another group of adults for students to connect with”

• “fill a huge need”

• “provide an invaluable service”

• “are an integral part of our school”

13

Feedback from School Administrators

hpePublicHealth.ca

• HPEDSB 
• Tabatha Leonard, Ken Dostaler, Katherine MacIver, Kerri Donnell, Karen LaRose, 
Bessie Stelatos

• ALCDSB
• Carey Smith‐Dewey, Bonnie Campbell, Melissa Phillips, Jessica Salmon, Kelly Taylor 

• Tri‐Board Transportation
• Gord Taylor, Roslynd Fraser‐Keeley

• KFL&A Public Health
• Janine Monahan, Suzanne Fegan, Piotr Oglaza

• Loyalist College
• Mark Kirkpatrick, Andrea Paradise, Ann Marie Vaughan, Jodie Russett

14

Partners’ Acknowledgment

hpePublicHealth.ca

Healthy School Team 
• Ashley Smith
• Wia Baker

• Emma Gaylord
• David Patterson

• Julie Parent 
• Brooke Cousins
• Sabrina Webster
• Kristina Smith

• Chelsea Robinson
• Jennine Seaman 

• Katrina Baxter
• Sharon Osterhout



1 

Listing of Information Items 
Board of Health Meeting – May 4, 2022 

1. Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit - Letter to Christine Elliott re: response to the opioid
crisis in Simcoe Muskoka and Ontario-wide dated March 16, 2022

2. Windsor-Essex County Health Unit - Letter to Christine Elliott re: Letter of Support - health
and equity: denouncing acts and symbols of hate dated March 30, 2022

3. Windsor-Essex County Health Unit - Letter to Christine Elliott re: Letter of Support - Ontario
Regulation 116/20, work deployment measures for boards of health dated March 30, 2022

4. Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge District Health Unit - Email re Board of Health motion in
support of OPHA statement against displays of racism, anti-semitism and discrimination

5. alPHa Annual General Meeting and Conference Information - June 13 and 14, 2022

Schedule 14
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